ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET

CASE NUMBER: C14H-07-0005 HLC DATE: February 26, 2007
March 26, 2007
April 23, 2007
ZAP DATE: June 5, 2007
June 19, 2007
July 31, 2007
August 7, 2007

APPLICANT: Historic Landmark Commission
HISTORIC NAME: Bull House
WATERSHED: Shoal Creek

ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE: 2213 Windsor Road, East

ZONING FROM: SF-3 TO: SF-3-H

SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends historic zoning for the
property, or in the alternative, execution of a preservation covenant and the donation of a
facade easement to ensure preservation of the prominent fagade facing Pease Park.

HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION: February 26, 2007: Initiated a historic
zoning case. March 26, 2007: Postponed the case to April 23, 2007. April 23, 2007:
Recommended a zoning change from single family residence (SF-3) district to single family
residence — Historic (SF-3-H) combining district zoning.

ZONING AND PLATTING COMMISSION ACTION: June 5, 2007: Postponed the case to
June 19, 2007. June 19, 2007: Postponed the case to July 31, 2007. July 31, 2007:
Postponed the case to August 7, 2007 due to lack of a quorum.

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: The Bull House is listed in the Comprehensive Cultural
Resources Survey (1984) but without a priority for research. The house is contributing to
the Old West Austin National Register Historic District.

CITY COUNCIL DATE: August 9, 2007 ACTION:
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST 2ND 3RD ORDINANCE NUMBER:
CASE MANAGER: Steve Sadowsky PHONE: 974-6454

NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION: Old Enfield Homeowners Association

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The ca. 1934 Bull House was renovated around 1965 to install. a central heat and air
conditioning system; installation of the system required excavation under the house which
caused significant structural damage. The facades of the house are intact but the house is
collapsing inwardly as the foundation for the slabs has been excavated and no longer supports
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the weight of the house. Staff believes that the house has architectural and historical merit
and recommends deconstruction and reconstruction to stabilize the house using historic
materials; proposed additions should be built on the Windsor Road, East side of the house, so
that the Parkway fagade remains intact. To accommodate the proposed additions, the location
of the house may have to be moved down the slope from its current location so that the
Parkway facades and historic appearance of the house remain. Staff further recommends
either historic zoning for this property or the execution of a preservation covenant and
donation of a facade easement to ensure the preservation of the prominent facade facing Pease
Park.

Architecture:

One-story with a raised basement wing-and-gable plan stone- and brick-veneered residence
with a composition shingle roof, metal-framed casement windows, and round-arched
arcaded wall at the raised basement. Howard Bull obtained a building permit in 1965 to
construct a frame addition to the side of the residence and extend the garage.

Historical Associations:
The house was built by Howard Westfall for E.B and Annie Louise Snead in 1934, according
to a mechanic’s lien filed August 29, 1934 for a 10-room stone dwelling house for $4,500.
Architectural details on the house may have come from UT’s Old Main Building, but this
cannot be proven. The Sneads purchased the property from the Westenfield Development
Company on August 8, 1934, although it is not clear if they ever lived in the house. The
first known resident was Adolph Goldmann, who moved here from the Alamo Hotel around
1936. Goldmann was the manager of Nelson Davis and Son, a large wholesale produce
company (now the Spaghetti Warehouse building at 4t2 and Colorado Streets). Goldmann
lived here only for a short time; by 1940, the house was owned and occupied by Alfred C.
and Edna H. Bull. Alfred Bull was the vice-president of American National Bank, having
joined the bank in 1936. According to the 1930 U.S. Census, Alfred and Edna Bull were
living on W. 23+ Street; he listed his occupation as a bank vice-president. By 1945, the
house was rented to Mrs. Sophia R. Lockart, a widow with two children. Howard W. and
Sue Bull purchased the house before 1947 and remained residents until 2004, when Mr.
Bull passed away at the age of 104. Howard Bull was an insurance agent who also was a
member and chaired the City Board of Equalization in the mid-1950s. - The 1930 U.S.
- Census shows Howard and Sue Bull renting (an un-numbered) house on Northwood Road;
he listed his occupation as an insurance agent.

PARCEL NO.: 01130104040000

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 25, and the Southwest Triangle of Lot 24, less the Northeast
triangle of Lot 25, Enfield D.

ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $12,627 (owner-occupied); city portion: $2,250.

APPRAISED VALUE: $1,015,930

PRESENT USE: Vacant

CONDITION: Fair
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PRESENT OWNER
Carlos Tames

3111 Glenview Avenue
Austin, Texas 78703

DATE BUILT: ca. 1934

ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS: Garage built 1965.

ORIGINAL OWNER(S): E.B. Snead (1934)

OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS: Contributing to the Old West Austin National
. Register Historic District.
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2213 WINDSOR ROAD EAST

North facade showing garage and arcaded raised basement
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West and south facades

East facade (Parkway)
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East facade (Parkway) showing round-arched arcaded raised basement, tile work and
casement windows

Detail of stone veneer and brackets, west facade
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View of underside of glass-brick paving in garage built ca. 1965, showing deterioration of
steel beams ‘
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View of excavation under house for the ca. 1965 installation of central heat and air.
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Summary of Interviews with Professor Blake Alexander
1 Highlights

e The house at 2213 Windsor Road East very likely incorporates materials from
UT’s Old Main Building

e While using materials from the Old Main Building, the house’s architect appears
to have intentionally designed the residence to echo the new Main Building

e Much of the materials of the house at 2213 Windsor Road East, including the
carved stone brackets and decorative ironwork, are of the style of the Old Main
Building '

e The metalwork and carved stone details are 19®-century Victorian pieces

¢ Much of the carved stonework shows signs of being salvaged from an earlier
building

e The design of the exterior of the house at 2213 Windsor Road East is definitely
the work of an architect and its quality indicates that it was the work of one of the
major Austin architects of the day

o The design for the new Main Building was enthusiastically received by Austin
architects of the mid-1930s and many fried to incorporate its styling and
sophisticated proportions into their own designs :

o The architect appears to have seen the design for the main facade of the new Main
Building and has echoed its use of a Renaissance arcade on the Parkway fagade of
the house, which is a very rare feature in Texas domestic architecture

e The proportions of the Parkway fagade are very sophisticated and very much like
the proportions of the arcade on the new Main Building

e The Parkway fagade of the house bears an remarkable resemblance fo the main,
south-facing facade of the new Main Building, especially if you imagine the
middle story of the Main Building removed

e This house is worth preserving

Below is a summary of the inferviews that Jason Nichols and David Cleaves conducted of
Professor Blake Alexander, retired UT architectural history professor and expert on the
history of Texas domesfic architecture. Wherever possible, Nichols and Cleaves
attempted to use Professor Alexander’s exact words. Professor Alexander has been
shown our summary of his notes and has approved them.
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OCCUPANCY HISTORY
2213 Windsor Road, East

City Directory Research, Austin History Center
By City Historic Preservation Office
February, 2007

1987 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
Retired

1981 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
' Retired

1975 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
: Re_tired

1969 ~ Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
Retired

1963 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners

No occupation listed

1958 ~ Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
Chairman, City Board of Equalization

1054 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
No occupation listed

1952 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
Member, City Board of Equalization

1949 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
Member, City Board of Equalization

1947 Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners
No occupation listed

1944-45 Mrs. Sophia R. Lockart, renter
Widow, Robert Lockart
No occupation listed
Also listed are Bob R. Lockart, U.S. Army, and Live W. Lockart, a student.

NOTE: Howard and Sue Bull are listed as living at 1415 Preston Avenue; he was
the proprietor of an insurance and mortgage loan firm located at 203 Capitol
National Bank Building.

1942 Alfred C. and Edna H. Bull, owners
Vice-President, American National Bank
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1940 Alfred C. and Edna H. Bull (not listed as owners)
Vice-President, American National Bank, and proprietor, with Howard W. Bull of
an insurance and mortgage loan firm located at 203 Norwood Building.

1937 Adolph Goldmann, owner
Manager, Nelson Davis and Son, wholesale grocers, 117 W. 4" Street.

1935 No houses are listed on Windsor Road, East.

NOTE: Adolph Goldmann is listed as residing at the Alamo Hotel. He was the
manager of Nelson Davis.
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March 7, 2007

Steve Sadowsky

Historic Preservation
City of Austin

505 Barton Springs Road
P.O. Box 1088

Austin, Texas 78767

Mr. Sadowsky,

Please consider this a valid petition as to the fact that I am against the historic designation
of my home at 2213 Windsor East Austin, Texas 78703.

If you have any questions please call me at (512) 426-7733.

Thank you,

Carlos A. Tames
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Petition Reganding 2213 E. Windaar, 78703 {the “Bull House™)
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Jason Nichols & David Cleaves
2706 Parkway
Awvrtin Texas, 78703

Austin Historic Landmark Commission
301 W. Second Street
Austin, Texas 78701

Mareh 17, 2007
Be: NRD-G7-0011 — 2213 Windsor Road Eazt
Dear Commnnissismars:

ﬁfelﬁ'enearfhepmpertyrefumedabm'emdwewwﬁdﬁkemmphasim:.vm'
support for Staff's histone-zoning reconmmendation. Cmeqmenﬂv we zre also opposed to the
oemers’ demolifion-permit application. We are not alons.! You will find enclosed z list of some
of the ather neighbors who are opposed to the demolibion of fhis houze.

We all believe that the house located at 2213 Windsor Road East, a stome
Mediterranean-style house from the 1930, is well worth preserving,; both on its own merits and
‘alzo o ceder to prezerve the character and mbegmity of ifs omediate swroundmes. 3213
Windzor Road East iz located m a wnigque enclave of mud-sized early-X0th-contury homes of
varying historieist and picharesque styles nestled on a nidgs overlooking Pease Partk and
downtown. Specifically, we believe that the historieal sigmficance of the house’s previows
owers, as well as its own architectwal ments, provides a fom basis for lustonic zoning. The
architectal case is particularly strong. The house, bailt sometime between 1936 and 19377
meorporates desizn elements of the Tnversity of Texas (“UT ) Old Main Bwlding, begum in the
18805 and demolished in 1934/35. In the opimicn of a noted architectural-nstorian and expert on
local architecture, the design of the house was also clearly inspired by the design for the then-
now Main Building. As such, not only s the house 2 unique and remarkable example of the
Mediterranean style writ in stone, it is also a vivid exanepie of the 1930 rush among Austinites to
incorporate elements of 2 cherished Avstin Jandmark into their contemporary surroundings. Itis
also a literal and tangible bitdze between the Old Mam the prasent Mam Building. We hope that
the preservation lesson mwosporated mio the house’s physical shuchwe s taken mito
consideration as a part of the historic-desipnation process in this matter,

We bave enclosed an executive summary of car comments for your comentence.

' At the February 27, 2007 hearing. the cumers statad that David Cleaves and Jason Nichols were the only ohjectors
and that al} ofher neiphhors “supported” the demolition percmy. This is mot the case. In fact, some of the neizhbor
who originally sigped the consent form in support of the demolifion application have changed their mind upon
learming more ot the histerir significance of the bese at 2213 Windsos Foad Bast.

% The Travis County Appeaisal Bistrict (“TCAD™ Web Site Bsts the construction date as 1934 for this property, bt
this date appears t be incorrect. It is common kmowledpe that TCAD construction dates for older homes &re often
imooaae. A review of nd@m.’lzmmfmﬁhe?li Windser Foad East addres: at the Austin History Center
(“AHE‘dedlgmmalakmngmmlﬁ Arcording 1o the AHC reference staff, this means thadt the house did nat
exist befoes 1936, :
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L Historic Siguificance of the Razidents:

The heuse at 2213 Windsor Road East was bwlt for and occupied by significant
players m Austin’s late 19th- and Mth-cenhory economic development Sipmificantly, the
bowse’s origmal owner rose to promunence in his field bevond Austin and beyomd Texas. The
history of the honse’s past owners helps telis the story of Austin’s gradual economic rise dasing
this period.

A Adolph Goldmanm
Chrr research reveals that the howse was buslt for Adolph Goldoman

Goldmann, bom m Howston m 1869, amived in Austin at age 2. By the age of 15
be was working for the Nelson Davis & Son firm, 3 wholesale mrocery vendor for whom he
would contirue to work until ks death at age 72 m the Pemberton Herghts neighbothood. In hiz
1942 Anstm-Amencan-Statesman obituary, Goldmann was called “one of the best known
grocery meerchants in the Soutlnwest™ and “the ofdest member of the wholesale grocery business
in Texas.” Additonally, Goldmamm owned and managed a retatt srocery stove with his brother
Panl Heymann Goldmann at 918 Congess Avenue at the begimuing of the 19th cenhoy until
some point in the exrly 20th century. Puorther details of 34r. Goldmann's life may be found in the
biography, attached hereto.

B. The Balls

Not kong after the bouse was built m the late-1930:, Goldmann sold the house to
Alfred Bull, 3 prominent local banker and Fresident of the Chamber of Commierce. Alfred Bull
was bom in 1893 to BF Bull, an accountant and former Confederate captain and Margaret
Castleman Bull, 2 member of a pronesnng Austm merchant famsly. Alfred Bull gradusted from
Texas ASM in 1916 and was later an mfantry captain in WWI. After the war he was in the
insurance busmess in Austin until 1925, Then he was the Vice President of Texas Bank & Trust
Co. unt] 1932, Texas Bank & Trust Co. later merged with Rapablic Bank & Trust and then
changed namws to Capital Bank, which shll exists today as Texas Capital Bank. After 1936,
about the time the howse at 2212 Windsor Road Bast was built, Alfred Bull switched back to
insurance amd also got mvolved in the mortgage loan busmess. By 19440 to 1942, Bull was back
in banking as the Vice President of Amerncan National Bank. Alﬁ‘ed Bull maried Edna
Hazlewood m 1924

Alfred Bull was the president of the Austin Chamber of Commesee in 1934, He
was also a memhber of the Auwstin School Board: Chaimuan of the Travis County Chapter of the
Red Cross as well as 3 member of the Texas Library and Historical Commmmssions.

Alfred Bull thmmnveyndtbe house at 2213 Windsor Road East to es brother
Howard W. Bull and his wife Swe. Howard Bull was a longtime Austin “msurance man,”
according to the Austin Amenican Statesman obitwary of Howard and Alfred’= mother, Margaret
Castlenran Bull. Howard W. Bull lived in the house at 2213 Windscr Eoad unhl biz death in
December 2004 at the ags of 104.
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II.  Historie/Architectural Sigumificance of the Structere — the Old Main Buildiag
Connection and Fmulation of the “New” Main Bullding

A.  Preserving 1213 Windsor Road East is Vital to Preserving the Archltettmras]
Integrity of Its Immediate Surrounding:

Az Steve Sadowski pointed out at the February 27, 2007 hearmg, the house at
2213 Wmdsor Road East 15 2 uwnique and sophusticated example of the Mediterranean Style
executed in hmestone. The house also fonts onto Pakway, a street noming zlong the west side
of Pease Park beiween Windsor Road/24th Street and Enfield Read. It Pakway facade sit=
parched on 2 ndge of other houses of medium size daimg from the 19205 and 1930s. The
howse's styling fits m with the ofher historicist or picturesque styles sesn on the other houses on
this block of Parkway, stretchimng from Windsor Roead on the north to Rainbow Bend om the
south. Alomg with its Tudor-styled neighbor on the adjacent lot mmediately north of it, the
hmmeualsgrammmgntsnm@bmmﬁhelybemgtbewmtufananhﬂeﬂasﬁppﬂsedm
commg from an architectimal pattern book.

"B Access to Original Drawings for the House Is Likely to Further the
Im'usﬁgam’e Process

The wdentity of the architect may be significant for historic-zoning purposes. At
prezent, we have not identified the architect and we believe that Staff has not had huck m this
respact, either. Our research bas revealed, howewver, that the present cwners have received
ongnal copies of the bluepratds, which very hikely bear the name of the architect or architectural
firm.  Altemstively, even if these plans do not bear the signatwre or name of the archifect or
architectwal frm that designed the house, exzmination of the plans by Staff or other local-
architectmre experts, such as retired UT architecture professor Blake Alexander, may assist in
1denfifyme the architect’s tdentity. We therafora suggest that you request that the bluepsints be
produced.

€. 2213 Windsor Road East Appears to Incarporate Architectural Materials
from UT*s (id Main Building

Perhaps even more mportant than the sophistication and ravity of #s design are
the house's materials themselves. The house 15 clad in a combination of bock and smooth-cut
limestone. Its windows are accented with decorative iromwork., The series of arches on the Fast
facade facing Parkway are alsc accented by iron gates. The Pakway facade is particularly
sophisticated, echoing 2 Mediterranean comntry villa with a series of gated arches on the lower
level surmenmted by a window-enclosed gallery above.

IL Demolition of the Old Main Building Occurred Not Long Before 3213
Windsor Koad East Was Bualt

Aside from the quality and craftsmanshop seen 1o the materials themsebves is the
likely orizin of these materials — University of Texas' Old Mam Bumldmg. The Old Main
Building was begun m the 18805 and evected in stages as the wmiversity acquired funds to expand
and as additional space was needed. For half a cenfury, the bullding was the hub of campus, -
housmg the admunistration of the early uarversity, as well as playing host to the full amray of
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academic and stodent-life fimetions at UT. However, by the 1950s, ﬂnhm]dmgha&hecm
difficult to mantain and was momﬂmplavﬂlemleﬂfcamnmdmtﬂfmﬁtgrmvmg
wiversity. The bmlding was consequenthy decomstructed m 193435 and the remams stacked
undemeath Memorial Stadivm awaiting possible reconstruction by 2 group of prominent,
preservation-minded aluom: memonsuuctoueﬁ'm‘tfaﬂed,hmm and the materials were
swept up by local balders and sentimental Austinites seeking to meorposate part of Old Main
into their local residences and businesses.

The svidence described below indicates that the house at 2213 Windsor Foad
East, built in the late 1930s, was a part of this trend. :

hA The Prior Goners of 2213 Windzor Koad East Underatood the Housze
to Be Built From 0ld Main Building Materials

Since the last heanng, we have spoken with George Krueger, a descendent of the
Howard Bull who lived in the house at 2213 Windsor Road Fast for the majority of its existence
unt lis death in December 2004, Mr. Krueger has fold us that it was the understanding of the
family that materials nsed o butld and finish ot the howse came froms Old Mam. These inclnde
stomework, omwork, and mferior woodwerk, mehuding mesquite door surrounds.

3. The Materials Themselves Are Consistent With Our Understanding of
Architectural Details Used in Old \*Iam and Show Signs of Salvage

from an Earlier Uze

Coroborating the fapuly histors ave the matenals themselves. We have also
spoken with Professor Blake Alexander, a retired UT architectural historian and specialist in
lustorte Texas architecture. Professor Alexander has taught at the UT School of Architecture for
nearly 40 years and is the author of mwmerous publications relating to Texas architechwe,
including Texas Homes gf the Ninstegnth Cennry {1966). Professor Alexander’s personal
eollection of Texas-focused architectural drawings forms the basis of the UT General Libraries’
architectural archives, renamed o hiz honor in 1997 as the Alexander Axchutectural Archive. We
visited Professor Alexander and showed him photographs of the howse, Specifically, we showed
bim assorted long shots of the house as well as close-up shots of vaneus archstechaal detzils that
we took with zoom photography from the sheet and from a peighbor’s property. A summary of
our two mterviews with Professor &lexander iz attached to this letter.

Professor Alexander believes that at least some of the stonework, particularly the
&:mh@hm@dﬂm&d”tmﬂﬂimﬂmgmofﬂxm&m&m&dumms
has been salvaged from an earlier, 1 9th-century structure. Hie also believes that these details are
in the style of the Old Main Bulding. He believes that they came from a Vietornian Gothic
building and are “of the type™ of datails that wovld have been found on Old Mam_

Of particular note are the stone brackets to be found sapportmg the roof over the
porch of the lower-level doorway on the south facade and also supporting the exterior stone trim
of the dining-room windows on the West facade. These brackets all bear typical 19th-century
decorative carving. The brackets near the lower-level porch on the Scuth side are particularly
iteresting because they bear a combination of Masonic symebols and 2 gothic flower. Professor
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Alexander notes that these decorative devices are representative uf&esartafma@um} r detatl that
dehmﬁbmmﬁhlmalmmw&eUHMmdammhmammmk

Addittonally, Professor Alexander believes that most of the wonwork on the house
is I9¢h-century wrought iron made by hand and is very likely from the same period as Old Main.
This meetalwork 15 the same sort of troowork that would have been found on Old Main. Professer
Alexzmder notes that there 1s also a lesser amount of J{th-cenhay cast won that was probably
inrorporated when the 19th-century monwerk was bumlt mto the house. The Weigel workshop
may have been involved m craftmg the newer momwork and in meciporating the older
matalwork.

There 15 forensic evidence of salvage, as well. Professor Alexander points ont
that the decorative trackets desenbed zbove are all chipped m visible areas, some very badly.
Hemmdthatmm&smmﬁdpmsuchchppedbl@&smmchp‘mmp}mmam
unless the blocks themselves were architectural salvage. Additiomzlly, the stonework around the
main door, ﬁchgmﬁmtn“’ﬂdsmkadﬁashhaﬁsumchfug&thmm&e&m
accommodate the bouse’s och soualler door. Consequently, the builder had to “step in” several
courses of brick to fill in the opening in the stonework. While it is possible that the “stepped-in™
brickwonk: featured in the doceway was a design choice {ie., mdmemgmpm} it 15 slso 2
liksly result of usmg stonework from an earlisr door or window opening that was much larger
than the docrway needad for 2213 Windsor Road Past. )

4, Photographic Evidence Supports the Caze for an Old Main Lick

While there 1z httBe documentation of the exact appearance of the architectural
datail of the 0ld Mam Building * we have found historical visnal evidence further coroboraime
the Bull family’s understanding of the material’'s origins. We have researched the original
architectwrzl dawings for the Old Mam Bulding, Iocated at the Alexander Architectural
Archives, a5 well as photographs and drawings of the Old Mam Building taken or made during
its hifatime. These drawmgs and photographs mav be found at the Center for Amencan Hxs:tm}
{the general archive of UT} and m UT Cactus 3rearhuci;5

The crigmnal architectural drawings for the building depict the repeated wse of a
gothic roze detail very similar to the gothic rose seen on the stone brackets supporting the porch
for the lower-level door on the south facade of the 2213 Windsor Road East house. Of cowrse,
the original drawings are laree in scale and do not depict the level of detail fo be seen on
individual window brackets. WNevertheless, the simslarity is sagmficant as architects, both m the
1%th cenhary and today, aﬁmnserepehﬁonafthesmemmlarst}hstmelemmﬁasade;agn

In the UT Cactus vearbook, we have found at least two photographs to date that
appear to show the stoue window brackats discussed above. Agam, these are brackess that are

* The Alexander Architectural Archive at TUT™s Batile Hall mainfains original 1880s drawings for the O3 Main
Bailding, on lipen.  These depict soane detail, such as the godhiic Bower or rose detadl that s zlso found on some of
the brackeis on 2213 Windser Rozd East. The ofpival drewings are g0 Hnen, 2nd as fash phodography is oot
allowed at the archive, the imazes we fook on digital camer are less-than-crystal clear. We can, bowever, supply
mm:nglsﬁﬁepﬁnmya@hsufmaemwmgsmmqm
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used on the South facade of 2213 Wmdsor Road East to sapport a porch overhanging a lower-
level, below-street-grade door and cn the west facade by the dming room as supports for a large
masomry window ledge. Both of the Cocts photographs depict an identical (or very simmlar)
senies of brackels once located on the front, or south-facing facade of the Old Main Buslding.
Specifically, owr specimen photos capture a series of three brackets that supported a second-story
window ledge on the fronf of Old Mam. From the photographs, it appears that these were two,
synuoetrical sets of these window-ledge bracketz on the south-facing, principal facade of Qld
Man  These two sets of bracketed window ledges were separated by Old Main's gothic entrance
tower. The earlier, 1928 view depicts the brackets on the west side of the tower entranre. Wisle
tha original photograph (depicting a saries of students dressed in white and lined up for the
JFmior Swing Ouf ceremnony) is taken from afar, a blow-up of the brackets reveals an idenfical (or
near tdentical} relationshup with the dnimg-room-window brackets on the west facade of 2213
Windsor Road East. The same can be said of the 1930 view, which shows the window brackets
on the east side of the entrance tower. The origmal photograph is & nmomus shot of “Toe
Collepe” touring lnis fanwly m front of the Old Mamm Buildmg. The blow-up zpain shows
brackets identical (or remarkably simmlar) to the dinmz-room window brackets on the west
facade of 2213 Windsor Road Bast For vour convenience, we are enclosing copies of the
Cartuz photopraphs, as well as recent photographs taken of the brackets on 2213 Wndsor Boad
East.

D. Not Only Doez 2213 Windzor Eoad East Incorporate Elements of Obd Main,
its Parloway-facing Facade also waz Specifically Designed to Emulate the
Then-Brand-New Prezent Main Building

Professor Alexander is struck by the sophistication of the Pakway-facing fagade
on the howse at 2213 Windsor Road Fast  Use of a repesting-aich arcade made of brick and
stone is zare i early-20P-century Texas domestic archifectre and is clearly the work of a
sophisticated arclutect, Professor Alexander belipves. Moreover, the Parkway facade appears to
be a near-exact facsimile of the mam fagzde of the then-new Mam Buildng designed by Pl
Crat, albeit transiated into wse for 2 house. Professor Alexander believes. that the architect of the
bouse at 2213 Windsor Road East was obviously inspived by the south-facing, principal fagade
of Cret’s new Main Bulding. R is not only the use of a ground-level arcade, 3 rare feature in an
Anstin house of the period, which caused Professor Alexander to notice the simalatty. The
sophisticated proportion of the arches and their piers (vertical supports) i3 nearly identeal in both
designs. Professor Alaxander is of the opinton that the architect of the honse at 2213 Windcor -
Road East saw either Paul Cret's design for the new Mam Bulding or saw the building itself
under construction at the same time that he was wosking on the design for the house. There was
a great deal of enthusiasm survounding the Paul Cret design for the new Mam Building amemg
Axstin architects of the maid-1930s. It does not sarprise Profescor Alexander that a local architect
working on a residential design sometime between 1935 and 1936 (who would bave seen the
design by 1934 and would have zctually zeen the facade rising up during the vear 1935) would
attempt to fransiate the Mam Bwmlding fagade to domestic use.

anes&mﬁlexmﬁa*be]iewsthaitbewayiuwh&chth;meat 2213 Windsor
Road East bridges the two UT Mam Buildings — by using design elements of the older building
while evoking the design of the new Main Building — makes the house worthy of preservation.
We agree.
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IV. Comclusion

The historic-zonmg pracess for 2213 Windsor Road Fast shouid be continmed and
the demoliton permmt demued  (iven the historical significance of the house’s occupants and the
ranty and quality of the house’s design, the case for continumg the lustoric-desigmation procesz
15 strong. When the evidence establishing a probable hnk to UT's Old Maxin Building is also
considered, howevear, we believe that the lustonc-designation process takes on new maportance.
Not cnly 13 historie d&s&gxzﬁmﬁﬂh; property mmpartant to mamtam the character and imtegrity
of the mumediate neighborhoed, it is necessay to maintain a Imk to a city-wide preservation

experience — recyching and reuse of the Old Main Building materials throughout Anstin,. We
balieve that preservation of this honse will help to tell that shmyﬁmAusﬁn"s history.

We thank vou for vou consideration in this matter.

Jason Wichols and Diavid Cleaves

Enclosures
| oo Steve Sadowski
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Executive Summary .
Nichols/Cleaves Comments on NRD-07-0011, 22132 Windsor Road East

We support Staff” s recommendation for historic zoning, as do others in the
- immediate neighborhood. This house is worth preserving due to the hstorical
significance of its previous occupants and due to its extreme architectural merit and
historical significance. The house’s previous occupants help tell the story of Austin’s
gradual nise in commercial importance.

The house itself 1s a fine, architect-designed example of the Mediterranean
style and 1s the only example of this style in the neighborhood. A retired UT
architectural history professor and prominent Texas architectural historian, Blake
Alexander, believes the house 1s worth preserving for two reasons. The house very likely
incorporates stone and sronwork features from the UT Old Main Building. Features on
the house are in the style of a significant IQﬁ-cent\ny gothic-revival building such as Old
Mam. Surviving photographs of details from Old Main appear to be identical to
stonework found on the 2213 Windsor Road East house. Not only does the house
incorporate materials from Old Mam, however, in the expert opimon of Professor
Alexander, the house was designed by an architect who wished to translate the design of
the then-new Paul Cret into use for a residence. Professor Alexander is struck by the
sophistication of the house’s east-facade ground-level arcade. Such an arcade is
extremely rare mn Austin residential architecture of the time. Moreover, Professor
Alexander notes that the spacing and proportion of the arcades arches themselves mimic
those of the present Man Building. There was a great deal of enthusiasm for Cret’s Mam
Building design among Austin architects of the time and Professor Alexander i1s not
surprised that a local architect would want to translate that design into residential use.

Due to its incorporation of materials from Old Main and its emmlation of
the Paul Cret Main Building design. the house at 2213 Windsor Road East 1s a tangible
bridge between the Old Main Building and present Mam Building at UT.

The Tames have the only copy of the original bluepnints. These should be
examined to identify the architect and evaluate if further research 15 necessary.
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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ANNOTATED AGENDA — APRIL 23, 2007

A. CITIZEN'S COMMUNICATIONS

The first four (4) speakers signed up to speak will each be allowed four (4) minutes to address their
concerns. '

B. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON HISTORIC ZONING CASES

C14H-07-0005 (postponed from March 26, 2007)
Bull House
2213 Windsor Road, East
Applicant: Charles Tames
City Staff: Steve Sadowsky, Historic Preservation Office, 974-6454 7
Staff Recommendation: Allow the applicant to deconstruct the house to the extent
necessary to correct structural problems then rebuild the house on-site with historic
fagade materials; new additions will require review by the Commission.

Commission Action: Cuppett/Hansen

Motion: Recommended a zoning change, from Single-Family Residence (SF-3) district,
zoning, to Single-Family Residence, Historic (SF-3-H) district, zoning,

Ayes: Arriaga, Arend, Bunton, Cuppett, Hansen, Limbacher, Mather and Rosato

Absent: Leary '

Motion carried by a vote of 8-0
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